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June 4, 2024 

 

Honorable Board of Supervisors 

Administration Building 

1221 Oak Street, Suite 536 

Oakland, California   94612 

 

Dear Board Members: 

 

 

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE LETTER TO THE CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT REGARDING THE STATUS OF THE 

COUNTY’S HOUSING ELEMENT AND APPROVE THE 

LETTER TO THE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION TO 

TRANSMIT THE BOARD’S LETTER TO THE STATE HCD 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

A. Approve the letter to the California Department of Housing and Community 

Development responding to the County Planning Commission’s June 4, 2024 

letter regarding the status of the County’s Housing Element, and authorize the 

President of the Board to sign the letter; and 

 

B. Approve the letter to the County Planning Commission to transmit the Board’s 

letter to the California Department of Housing and Community Development, 

and authorize the President of the Board to sign the transmittal letter. 

 

DISCUSSION/SUMMARY: 

 

The Housing Element update is critical for all California cities and counties, including 

the County of Alameda. The County was required to complete its Housing Element 

update by January 31, 2023. Completing the Housing Element, which must be certified 

by the State Housing and Community Development (State HCD), is essential to 

maintaining local land use control, and eligibility for state and regional transportation, 

housing, and planning grants. 

 

Planning staff are in the process of updating the Alameda County Housing Element for 

2023 to 2031 (6th cycle). The Housing Element considers current and future housing 

needs for all unincorporated areas of the County. This includes the communities of 

Ashland, Castro Valley, Cherryland, Fairview, Hayward Acres, and San Lorenzo in the 

urbanized unincorporated areas as well as Sunol, and unincorporated areas in the East 

County.  
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An extensive community engagement process, with 24 public meetings, led to the submission of 

the First Draft of the Housing Element to the State HCD on October 6, 2023. As part of the 

iterative process for certification, the State HCD provided extensive feedback to the County on 

December 14, 2023. In response, staff incorporated additional revisions and conducted a 

community meeting before finalizing the Second Draft for public review.  After a public comment 

period from April 19, 2024 to May 3, 2024, staff submitted the Second Draft to the State HCD on 

May 10, 2024. Staff anticipates comments from the State HCD on the Second Draft in early July 

2024. 

  

On June 4, 2024, the Planning Commission (PC) approved the transmission of a letter to your 

Board (BOS), the County Administrator, and the State HCD regarding their concern that the 

Community Development Agency’s public input process is insufficient. 

 

The Board acknowledges the receipt of the PC’s letter approved on June 3, 2024, and the Board 

will consider sending a letter to the State that reflects the County’s Housing Element process. 

This process has aimed to balance the desire to expeditiously completing the housing element 

certification process with the need for community outreach and input.  

 

FINANCING: 

 

There is no Net County Cost as a result of this action. 

 

VISION 2026 GOAL: 

 

The Alameda County’s Housing Element goals meets the 10X goal pathways of Eliminate 

Homelessness, Eliminate Poverty and Hunger, and Accessible Infrastructure in support of 

our shared visions of Healthy Environment, Thriving and Resilient Population, and Safe and 

Livable Communities. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

Sandra Rivera, Director 

Community Development Agency  

Attachments: 

Attachment A – BOS letter to the State HCD responding to the PC’s June 4, 2024 letter 

Attachment B – Board of Supervisor’s transmittal letter to the County Planning Commission  

Attachment C – June 4, 2024 Planning Commission’s letter to the Board of Supervisors 

 

cc: Susan S. Muranishi, County Administrator 

Donna R. Ziegler, County Counsel 

Melissa Wilk, Auditor-Controller 

Peilin Chen, County Administrator’s Office  

Caitlyn M. Gulyas, Office of the County Counsel 

Lucy Romo, Community Development Agency 
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Paul McDougall, Senior Program Manager 
Jose Ayala, Senior Housing Policy Specialist 
California Department of Housing and Community Development 
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO ALAMEDA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION'S LETTER 
OF JUNE 4, 2024 

Dear Mr. McDougall and Mr. Ayala: 

On June 4, 2024, you received a letter from the Alameda County Planning Comm ission expressing the 
Planning Commission's concerns regarding the opportunity for public review and comment on the County's 
draft Housing Element. The Board of Supervisors (Board) is not in agreement with the Planning 
Commission's view that oppo1tunity for comment by members of the public and the Castro Valley, Eden 
Area, and Fairview Municipal Advisory Councils (MACs) has been inadequate throughout the element 
update process. While the Board is committed to engaging the public and the MACs in the development of 
the Housing Element, to the greatest extent feasible, the Board is also aware of the pressing need to complete 
and adopt a comp liant Housing Element. 

Since the Housing Element community engagement process began, County Planning Department staff have 
made presentations on the Element and received comments at 25 public meetings, including three separate 
meetings with each of the three MA Cs and two joint meetings with all three MA Cs. The most recent joint 
MAC meeting, on March 21, 2024, was held with the support of the Board to expedite the submittal of the 
revised draft element to your department for the second review period. [n addition, the latest joint MAC 
meeting was open to the public, who had the opportunity to provide public comment on the Housing 
Element. Each MAC will be included in the approva l process for the Housing Element once it is found in 
substantial compliance by your department. 

Summaries of all comments received at each of the public meetings and by phone and email were provided 
in Appendix E of the October 2023 draft element. A complete list of comments and responses received 
throughout the process begins on page 75 of Append ix E of the May 2024 draft. A complete comment and 
response matrix, as well as links to the information presented at each of the public meetings, can also be 
found at https://www.acgov.org/cda/planning/housing-element/engagement-survevs.htm. 

Availability of the Sites Inventory 

The first draft of the sites inventory was made public (including posting on the county website) toward the 
end ofNovember 2022 and was presented at the December 5, 2022 Planning CommissiDn meeting. Between 
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